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BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 
 

Petitioner, 
                         v. 
 
MORTON ISAAC HYSON, M.D.  
Certificate of Registration No. CS05851, 

 
Respondent. 

 Case No. 22-146-CS-S 
 
 

STIPULATION AND ORDER  
 

 J. David Wuest, in his official capacity as Executive Secretary of the Nevada State Board of 

Pharmacy, by and through its Assistant General Counsel, Peter K. Keegan, Esq., and Respondent 

MORTON ISAAC HYSON, M.D., (“Respondent”) Certificate of Registration No. CS05851, 

HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter. 

2. On or about June 9, 2022, Board Staff properly served Respondent with the Notice of 

Intended Action and Accusation (“Accusation”) on file in this matter together with the Statement to 

Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. Respondent is fully aware of his right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter prior 

to entering into this Stipulation. 

4. Respondent is aware of his right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the Accusation, 

his right to reconsideration, his right to appeal and any and all other rights which may be accorded to 

him pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (“Nevada Administrative Procedure Act”), NRS Chapter 622A 

(“Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies”), and NRS Chapter 639 (“Nevada 

Pharmacy Act”). 

5. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the exception 

of the right to challenge any determination that Respondent has failed to comply with the provisions of 

paragraphs below, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily waives his rights to a hearing, 

reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this action that may be accorded to him 

by NRS Chapter 233B (“Nevada Administrative Procedure Act”), NRS Chapter 622A 
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(“Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies”), and NRS Chapter 639 (“Nevada 

Pharmacy Act”). 

6. Respondent admits that evidence exists, and that Board staff prosecuting this case could 

present such evidence at an administrative hearing, to establish a factual basis for the violations alleged 

in the Accusation, to wit, that:    

A. The suspension of Respondent’s Nevada State Board of Medical Examiner’s 

License No. 6062 to practice medicine disqualifies him from holding a Nevada registration to dispense 

controlled substances pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2);  21 U.S.C. § 823(f); 21 CFR § 1306.03; and 

NRS 453.226(1), and are grounds for the disciplinary suspension of Respondent’s registration pursuant 

to NRS 453.231(1)(b); NRS 453.236(1)(e); NRS 453.241(1); NRS 639.210(4) and (12); NRS 

639.2107; NRS 639.255; and NAC 639.295.  

7. In order to resolve this matter without incurring any further costs or the expenses 

associated with a hearing, the Board and Respondent stipulate to the following penalties.  Respondent 

Dr. Morton Isacc Hyson, M.D., Certificate of Registration No. CS05851 hereby agrees to: 

A. The suspension of his Controlled Substance Registration No. CS05851 until 

such time as Respondent demonstrates the reinstatement of his Nevada Medical License No. 6020; and 

B. Pay Five-Hundred and Dollars ($500.00) to partially reimburse the Board for 

recoverable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating and prosecuting this matter. 

B. In the event Respondent petitions for reinstatement, or applies for reinstatement, 

or applies for any other certificate, license or permit with the Board, he shall appear before the Board 

to answer questions and give testimony regarding his application, his compliance with this Order, as 

well as the facts and circumstances underlying this matter.  

8. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Order may result in issuance 

by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause, pursuant to NAC 639.965, directing Respondent 

to appear before the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting for a show cause hearing.  If such a 

hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Order by Respondent, the Board may impose additional 

discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with the provisions of NRS Chapter 639.  
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9. The Board’s Assistant General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for 

approval pursuant to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on September 8, 

2022, in Las Vegas, Nevada.  Respondent will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the 

Board Members and/or Board Staff.  The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate 

regarding this Stipulation, even if Respondent or his counsel are not present at the meeting. 

10. The Board may accept this Stipulation but it is not obligated to do so.  If this Stipulation 

is approved by the Board, it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330 and shall be reported to 

the National Practitioner Data Bank pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396r–2 and 45 CFR Part 60. 

11. If the Board rejects any part or all this Stipulation, and unless they reach an alternative 

agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the merits of this 

matter may be heard by the Board.  The terms and admissions herein may not be used or referred to in 

a full hearing on the merits of this matter. 

12. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the $500.00 in 

attorney’s fees and costs agreed to herein by personal, cashiers, or certified check or money order made 

payable to “Nevada State Board of Pharmacy,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 

985 Damonte Ranch Parkway – Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521, within thirty (30) days of the effective 

date of this Order. 

13. Subject to the approval of this Stipulation by the Board, the Board and Respondent agree 

to release each other from any and all additional claims arising from the facts set forth in the Accusation 

on file herein, whether known or unknown that might otherwise have existed on or before the effective 

date of this Order. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
 



Respondent has fully considered the charges and allegations contained in the Notice of Intended
Action and Accusatio11 in this matter, and the terms of this Stipulation, and has freely and 
voluntarily agreed to the terms set forth herein, and waived certain rights, as stated herein. 

AGREED: 

Signed this3L._ day of August 2022. 
SJ. 

Signed this J!_ day of August 2022. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

1(���-;J ORTON IS SON,� 
Certificate of Registration No. CS05851 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The Nevada State Board of Phannacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipu]ation as its decision as 

to Respondent Morton Isaac Hyson, M.D., Certificate of Registration No. CS0585 l, in Case No. 22-

146-CS-S and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipu]ation be made effective upon

execution below.

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Entered this_ day of September 2022. 

Helen Park, President 

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
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BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 
 

                         Petitioner, 
                         v. 
 
SHERMAN WASHINGTON, MD, 
Certificate of Registration No. CS24310, 

 
                        Respondent. 

 Case Nos.     19-243-CS-S 
                      21-104-CS-N  
 
 
STIPULATION AND ORDER 
 

 Brett Kandt, General Counsel for Petitioner the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

(Board), and Respondent Sherman Washington, MD, Certificate of Registration No. CS24310, 

by and through counsel, Michael Mee, Esq., HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE THAT: 

1. The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter. 

2. On or about April 7, 2022, Respondent was served with the Notice of Intended 

Action and Accusation on file in in Case No. 21-104-CS-N together with the Statement to 

Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. On or about April 26, 2022, Respondent was served with the Notice of Intended 

Action and Accusation on file in in Case No. 19-243-CS-S together with the Statement to 

Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

4. Respondent is fully aware of the right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter 

and obtained the advice of counsel prior to entering into this Stipulation. 

5. Respondent is aware of the right to a hearing on the matters alleged herein, the 

right to reconsideration, the right to appeal and any and all other rights which may be accorded to 

him pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), NRS Chapter 622A 

(Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS Chapter 639 (Nevada 

Pharmacy Act). 
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6. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the 

exception of the right to challenge any determination that Respondent has failed to comply with 

the provisions of this Stipulation, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily waives his rights to a 

hearing, reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this action that may be 

accorded to him by NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), NRS Chapter 

622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS Chapter 639 

(Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

7. Respondent does not contest the allegations plead with particularity in each 

accusation, but acknowledges that Board staff prosecuting this case could present such evidence 

at an administrative hearing to establish a factual basis for the violations alleged therein, to wit, 

that:    

A. Respondent violated 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2), 21 U.S.C. § 823(f), 21 U.S.C. 

§ 841(a), 21 U.S.C. § 842(a), 21 U.S.C. § 846, 21 CFR § 1306.03(a)(1) , 21 CFR § 1306.04(a), 

NRS 453.226(1), NRS 453.321(1)(a), NRS 453.331(1) (f) and (i), NRS 453.381(1), NRS 

453.401(l)(a), NRS 639.100(1), NRS 639.235(1) and/or NAC 454.060, by permitting persons 

not licensed as practitioners in Nevada to fraudulently issue prescriptions for controlled 

substances and/or dangerous drugs under Respondent’s credentials; 

B. Respondent violated NRS 453.164(7) and NRS 639.23507 by failing to 

query the Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) database;  

C. Respondent violated NRS 453.331(1)(e) by failing to disclose 

administrative actions to the Board on his 2020 biennial renewal application and on his 

applications for two additional controlled substance registrations; 

D. Respondent violated 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2), 21 U.S.C. § 823(f), 21 U.S.C. 

§ 841(a), 21 U.S.C. § 842(a), 21 U.S.C. § 846, 21 CFR § 1306.03(a)(1), 21 CFR § 1306.04(a), 

CFR § 1301.71, NRS 453.226(1), NRS 453.232, NRS 453.321(1)(a), NRS 453.377, NRS 
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453.381(1), NRS 454.213(1), NRS 454.215(3); NRS 454.221, NRS 454.316, NRS 454.321, NRS 

454.356, NRS 454.480, NRS 454.510, NRS 454.530, NRS 639.100(1), NRS 639.235(1), NRS 

639.23505, NAC 639.742, NAC 453.400 and/or NAC 453.410(1)(d), in the course of operating 

Vida Spa as detailed in the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners’ order in Case No. 21-

41427-1; and 

E. Respondent engaged in unprofessional conduct and conduct contrary to 

the public interest as defined in NAC 639.945(1)(h), (i), (j), (k), (n) and/or (o); and committed 

acts that render his registration inconsistent with the public interest and is subject to discipline 

pursuant to NRS 453.236(1). 

8. In order to resolve Case Nos. 19-243-CS-S and 21-104-CS-N without incurring 

any further costs or the expense associated with a hearing, the Board and Respondent stipulate to 

the following penalties: 

A. The certificate of registration of Respondent Sherman Washington, MD, 

Certificate of Registration No. CS24310, is hereby revoked pursuant to NRS 453.241(l)(b): 

1) Respondent may not possess (except pursuant to the lawful order 

of a practitioner), administer, prescribe or dispense a controlled substance until he has petitioned 

the Board for reinstatement pursuant to NRS 639.257 and the Board reinstates his certificate of 

registration.; 

2) Pursuant to NRS 622A.410(1) and 639.257(1), Respondent may 

not petition for reinstatement of his certificate of registration for a period of two (2) years from 

the effective date of this Order; and 

3) In the event Respondent applies for reinstatement of his certificate 

of registration, or applies for any other certificate, license or permit with the Board, he shall 

appear before the Board to answer questions and give testimony regarding his application, his 

compliance with this Order, and the facts and circumstances underlying this matter. 
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B. Pursuant to NRS 639.255(1)(f) and NAC 639.955(5), Respondent shall 

pay a fine of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for the violations, through monthly payments 

pursuant to the following schedule: 

Due Date Amount 
 

10/1/2022 
 

400.00 
11/1/2022 400.00 
12/1/2022 400.00 
1/1/2023 400.00 
2/1/2023 400.00 
3/1/2023 400.00 
4/1/2023 400.00 
5/1/2023 400.00 
6/1/2023 
7/1/2023 
8/1/2023 

400.00 
400.00 
400.00 

9/1/2023 600.00 
Total $5,000.00 

 Respondent shall make the monthly payments of the fine amount by personal, business, 

certified or cashier’s check or money order made payable to “State of Nevada, Office of the 

Treasurer,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway 

– Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521.  Respondent has the right to pre-pay any or all of the 

payments.   

C. Pursuant to NRS 622.400, Respondent shall pay: 

1) Six Hundred Dollars ($600.00) to partially reimburse the Board for 

reasonable attorney’s fees and recoverable costs incurred in investigating and prosecuting Case 

No. 19-243-CS-S; and 

2) Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) to partially reimburse the 

Board for reasonable attorney’s fees and recoverable costs incurred in investigating and 

prosecuting Case No. 21-104-CS-N. 
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Respondent shall pay the attorney’s fees and costs through monthly payments pursuant to 

the following schedule: 

Due Date Amount 
 

10/1/2022 
 

400.00 
11/1/2022 400.00 
12/1/2022 400.00 
1/1/2023 400.00 
2/1/2023 400.00 
3/1/2023 400.00 
4/1/2023 400.00 
5/1/2023 400.00 
6/1/2023 
7/1/2023 
8/1/2023 

400.00 
400.00 
400.00 

9/1/2023 200.00 
Total $4,600.00 

 Respondent shall make the monthly payments of the attorney’s fees and costs by 

personal, business, certified or cashier’s check or money order made payable to the “Nevada 

State Board of Pharmacy” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 985 Damonte 

Ranch Parkway – Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521.   Respondent has the right to pre-pay any or 

all of the payments.   

9. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Order may result in 

issuance by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause pursuant to NAC 639.965 

directing Respondent to appear before the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting for a 

show cause hearing.  If such a hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Order by 

Respondent, the Board may impose additional discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with 

the provisions of NRS Chapters 453 and 639.  

10. General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for approval pursuant 

to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on September 8, 2022.  

Respondent or his counsel will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the Board 
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DECISION AND ORDER 

 The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as its 

decision as to Respondent Sherman Washington, MD, Certificate of Registration No. CS24310, 

in Case Nos. 19-243-CS-S and 21-104-CS-N and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing 

Stipulation be made effective upon execution below.  

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

 Entered this ___ day of September, 2022. 

 
      __________________________________ 
      Helen Park, Pharm.D. 
      President 
      Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
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BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 
 

Petitioner, 
                         v. 
 
GRAHAM DUNDAS SIMPSON, M.D.  
Certificate of Registration No. CS01982, 

 
Respondent. 

 Case No. 22-199-CS-S 
 
 

STIPULATION AND ORDER  
 

 J. David Wuest, in his official capacity as Executive Secretary of the Nevada State Board of 

Pharmacy, by and through its Assistant General Counsel, Peter K. Keegan, Esq., and Respondent 

GRAHAM DUNDAS SIMPSON, M.D., (“Respondent”) Certificate of Registration No. CS01982, 

HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter. 

2. On or about August 2, 2022, Board Staff properly served Respondent with the Notice 

of Intended Action and Accusation (“Accusation”) on file in this matter together with the Statement to 

Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. Respondent is fully aware of his right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter prior 

to entering into this Stipulation. 

4. Respondent is aware of his right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the Accusation, 

his right to reconsideration, his right to appeal and any and all other rights which may be accorded to 

him pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (“Nevada Administrative Procedure Act”), NRS Chapter 622A 

(“Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies”), and NRS Chapter 639 (“Nevada 

Pharmacy Act”). 

5. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the exception 

of the right to challenge any determination that Respondent has failed to comply with the provisions of 

paragraphs below, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily waives his rights to a hearing, 

reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this action that may be accorded to him 

by NRS Chapter 233B (“Nevada Administrative Procedure Act”), NRS Chapter 622A 
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(“Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies”), and NRS Chapter 639 (“Nevada 

Pharmacy Act”). 

6. Respondent admits that evidence exists, and that Board staff prosecuting this case could 

present such evidence at an administrative hearing, to establish a factual basis for the violations alleged 

in the Accusation, to wit, that:    

A. Respondent continued to prescribe controlled substances, primarily in the form 

of testosterone, to Nevada patients during the period while his Nevada Controlled Substance 

Registration and/or DEA Registration was expired, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2); 21 U.S.C. § 

823(f); 21 CFR § 1306.03(a)(1); NRS 453.226(1); NRS 453.236(1)(c); NRS 453.321(1)(a); NRS 

639.100(1); NRS 639.235(1), and these violations are grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to NRS 

453.236(1)(c); NRS 453.241(1); NRS 639.210(4), (11), (12), and (13); and NRS 639.255;  

B. In June 2019 and again in October 2022, Respondent submitted a controlled 

substance application the Board and falsely certified to the Board, in violation of NRS 639.281(1), that 

he had not been the subject of a board citation or an administrative action whether completed or pending 

in any state, and these violations are grounds for disciplinary action pursuant to NRS 639.210(9) and/or 

(10) and/or NRS 639.255(3); and 

C. Respondent has never held a Prescription Monitoring Program (“PMP”) account 

associated with his DEA Registration FS8627359 and consequently has been unable to run any PMP 

inquiries for patients to whom he prescribed controlled substances, which constitutes violations of NRS 

453.164(7) and NRS 639.23507 and is grounds for discipline pursuant to NRS 453.236(1)(d) and (e); 

NRS 453.241; NRS 639.210(12) and/or NRS 639.23916(3)(b) and NRS 639.255(3). 

7. In order to resolve this matter without incurring any further costs or the expenses 

associated with a hearing, the Board and Respondent stipulate to the following penalties.  Respondent 

Dr. Graham D. Simpson, M.D., Certificate of Registration No. CS01982 shall: 

A. Pay a fine of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for the violations; and 

B. Pay Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) to partially reimburse the Board for 

recoverable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating and prosecuting this matter. 
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8. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Order may result in issuance 

by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause, pursuant to NAC 639.965, directing Respondent 

to appear before the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting for a show cause hearing.  If such a 

hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Order by Respondent, the Board may impose additional 

discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with the provisions of NRS Chapter 639.  

9. The Board’s Assistant General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for 

approval pursuant to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on September 8, 

2022, in Las Vegas, Nevada.  Respondent will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the 

Board Members and/or Board Staff.  The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate 

regarding this Stipulation, even if Respondent or his counsel are not present at the meeting. 

10. The Board may accept this Stipulation, but it is not obligated to do so.  If this Stipulation 

is approved by the Board, it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330 and shall be reported to 

the National Practitioner Data Bank pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396r–2 and 45 CFR Part 60. 

11. If the Board rejects any part or all this Stipulation, and unless they reach an alternative 

agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the merits of this 

matter may be heard by the Board.  The terms and admissions herein may not be used or referred to in 

a full hearing on the merits of this matter. 

12. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00) in agreed upon fines by cashier’s check or certified check or money order made 

payable to “State of Nevada, Office of the Treasurer,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office 

located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway – Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521 within thirty (30) days of 

the effective date of this Order.  

13. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the Seven 

Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) in attorney’s fees and costs agreed to herein by personal, cashiers, or 

certified check or money order made payable to “Nevada State Board of Pharmacy,” to be received 

by the Board’s Reno office located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway – Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521, 

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order. 
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DECISION AND ORDER 

 The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as its decision as 

to Respondent Graham Dundas Simpson, M.D., Certificate of Registration No. CS01982, in Case No. 

22-199-CS-S and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipulation be made effective upon 

execution below.  

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

 Entered this ___ day of September 2022. 

 
     __________________________________ 
     Helen Park, President 
     Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
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Kristopher Mangosing

From: David Wuest
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 2:29 PM
To: Kenneth C. Scheuber; Leo D. Basch
Cc: Kristopher Mangosing
Subject: please print for agenda 19 tomorrow

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

 
 
      NRS 233B.0613  Emergency regulations. 
      1.  If an agency determines that an emergency exists, it shall submit to the Governor a written statement of the emergency which
sets forth the reasons for the determination. If the Governor endorses the statement of the emergency by written endorsement at the end 
of the full text of the statement of emergency on the original copy of a proposed regulation, the regulation may be adopted and become 
effective immediately upon its being filed in the Office of the Secretary of State pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.070. The 
statement of the emergency endorsed by the Governor must be included as a part of the regulation for all purposes. 
      2.  If practicable, the agency shall, not later than 9 a.m. on the first working day before the date on which the emergency regulation
is filed in the Office of the Secretary of State pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.070, make the emergency regulation available to
the public by: 
      (a) Providing a copy of the emergency regulation to a member of the public upon request; and 
      (b) Making a copy of the emergency regulation available on its website on the Internet, if any. 
      3.  If practicable, the agency shall, not later than 9 a.m. on the first working day before the date of any hearing at which the agency 
considers the emergency regulation, make the version of the proposed emergency regulation that will be considered at the hearing 
available to the public by: 
      (a) Providing a copy of the proposed emergency regulation to a member of the public upon request; and 
      (b) Making a copy of the proposed emergency regulation available on its website on the Internet, if any. 
      4.  A regulation adopted pursuant to this section may be effective for a period of not longer than 120 days. A regulation may be
adopted by this emergency procedure only once. 
      5.  If an agency adopts, after providing notice and the opportunity for a hearing as required in this chapter, a permanent or temporary
regulation which becomes effective and is substantially identical to its effective emergency regulation, the emergency regulation expires 
automatically on the effective date of the temporary or permanent regulation. 
      (Added to NRS by 1983, 1125; A 1983, 1245; 1995, 131, 2580; 2003, 2005; 2011, 406) 

 



 

1776 Wilson Blvd., Suite 200, Arlington, VA 22209      •      P: 703.549.3001      •      F: 703.836.4869      •      NACDS.org 

 

September 6, 2022 
 
Mr. Dave Wuest, PharmD   
Executive Secretary  
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
985 Damonte Ranch Parkway #206  
Reno, NV 89521   
 
Email: dwuest@pharmacy.nv.gov 
  
RE: Discussion and Possible Action on Adoption of Emergency Regulation pursuant to NRS 233B.0613 to amend 

NAC 639.250 relating to the number of pharmaceutical technicians and pharmaceutical technicians in training 
that a pharmacist may supervise at one time 

 
Dear Executive Secretary Wuest, 
 
The National Association of Chain Drug Stores (NACDS) writes to urge the Board to immediately act to adopt 
Emergency Regulations to restore allowances for a 6:1 pharmacy technician to pharmacist ratio that had been 
permitted under a waiver of the rules in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, but that expired in July of 2022. By 
enhancing pharmacy providers’ ability to optimize the use of pharmacy technicians, this needed rule change would 
bolster pharmacists’ capacity to focus on the provision of pharmacy care to their patients – a public health 
imperative as pharmacies prepare to meet the public’s healthcare needs with flu shot and COVID booster season on 
the immediate horizon. 
 
By increasing the number of pharmacy technicians eligible to work in pharmacies under pharmacists’ supervision, 
the proposed rule change would further empower pharmacy providers to determine what staffing and optimal 
workflow models best meet their needs given the specific volume and patient care requirements at their pharmacy. 
Notably, patient demand for clinical care services available in many pharmacies amplified during the COVID-19 
pandemic. On top of this and with the recent FDA authorization and subsequent ACIP recommendation for the 
bivalent COVID booster, a growing number of patients – who now expect and rely on neighborhood pharmacies for 
numerous basic healthcare services – are expected to visit their pharmacy for flu shots and the new COVID booster 
on top of other healthcare services such testing and health screenings. Having the flexibility to delegate technical, 
nondiscretionary tasks to a supporting team of pharmacy technicians enables pharmacists to redirect their time 
toward the activities that require pharmacists’ clinical expertise and advanced-level training.  
 
NACDS maintains the position that pharmacy technician ratios are unnecessary and should be eliminated. No 
evidence exists to support any particular ratio, nor are there any reports or studies showing that ratios improve 
patient safety.  

• 37 states have pharmacist to technician ratios that are less restrictive than Alabama’s current ratio; of those, 
24 states and the District of Columbia do not place any limit on the number of technicians a pharmacist can 
oversee.i 

• In 1999, the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy (NABP) Task Force supported elimination of the 
pharmacist to technician ratio. 

• The Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) has never had a pharmacy technician ratio with no negative impact 
patient safety. 

mailto:dwuest@pharmacy.nv.gov
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Given the nonexistence of evidence supporting ratios, and the imperative to reduce undue strain on pharmacy 
personnel, NACDS urges the Board to at a minimum, promulgate Emergency Rules to restore the allowances for a 
6:1 pharmacy technician to pharmacist ratio. 
 
NACDS strongly supports pharmacists practicing at the top of their profession to allow for optimal patient care and 
improved health outcomes. Given the growing demand for pharmacist-provided patient care services in community 
pharmacies, there is a clear need to deploy more pharmacy technicians for administrative and non-judgmental 
duties.  Now more than ever, it is critical to leverage the expertise and skills of all pharmacy staff to optimize the 
capacity of pharmacies to provide much needed vaccinations, testing and other care services across the state. These 
unprecedented times require new models of care and innovative practices that leverage all healthcare resources and 
deploy all skills to best support and care for the public. We urge the Board to take action today to move forward 
with Emergency Regulations. For further information, please contact NACDS’ Mary Staples, Director of State 
Government Affairs, at mstaples@nacds.org  or 817-442-1155. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Steven C. Anderson, FASAE, CAE, IOM  
President and Chief Executive Officer 
National Association of Chain Drug Stores 
 
cc: Members of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
 

### 
 
NACDS represents traditional drug stores, supermarkets and mass merchants with pharmacies. Chains operate over 
40,000 pharmacies, and NACDS’ over 80 chain member companies include regional chains, with a minimum of four 
stores, and national companies. Chains employ nearly 3 million individuals, including 155,000 pharmacists. They fill 
over 3 billion prescriptions yearly, and help patients use medicines correctly and safely, while offering innovative 
services that improve patient health and healthcare affordability. NACDS members also include more than 900 
supplier partners and over 70 international members representing 21 countries. Please visit NACDS.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mstaples@nacds.org
https://www.nacds.org/
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i  

Ratio  

No ratio 
(24 states + DC) 

AK, AZ, DE, DC, HI, ID, IL, IA, KY, ME, MD, MI, MO, MT, NH, NM, OH, OR, PA, RI, UT, VT, WA*, 
WI, WY 

8:1 
(1 state) 

IN 

6:1 
(3 states) 

CO, FL, TX 

4:1  
(8 states) 

GA, KS, MA, MN, ND, SC, VA, WV 

3:1 
(7 states) 

AL, AR, CT, MS, NE, NV**, SD 

2:1 
(6 states) 

LA***, NJ, NY, NC****, OK, TN 

1:1 
(1 state) 

CA 

*WA ratio set per “pharmacy manager’s discretion” 
**NV allows up to 8:1 in a “non-dispensing pharmacy” 
***LA allows for a 3:1 ratio when there are no techs in training on duty 
**** NC allows a pharmacist to supervise more than 2 technicians if the pharmacist-manager receives written 
approval from the Board 



 

 
 

 
September 2, 2022 

 
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy  

Attention: Dave Wuest, PharmD  
Executive Secretary 
985 Damonte Ranch Parkway #206  

Reno, NV 89521  
Email: dwuest@pharmacy.nv.gov 
 

RE: NAC 639.250/Petition for Emergency Rule Making 
 

Dear Executive Secretary Wuest, 

On behalf of Albertsons Companies, Inc. (“ACI”), I am writing in support of Walgreens Co.’s formal 
petition for emergency rulemaking to address NAC 639.250, Restrictions on Supervision. We agree that 
the expansion of the pharmacy technician to pharmacist ratio is integral to supporting the healthcare 

needs of patients in Nevada. 

ACI is a leading food and drug retailer that operates stores across 34 states and the District of Columbia 
with more than 20 well-known banners including Albertson's, Safeway, Vons, Jewel-Osco, Shaw's, Acme, 

Tom Thumb, Randalls, United Supermarkets, Pavilions, Star Market, Haggen, Carrs, Kings Food Markets, 

and Balducci's Food Lovers Market. ACI also operates more than 1,720 community pharmacies.  

Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, pharmacies have proven to be an integral component of the 
healthcare system in meeting the needs of communities across the country. Pharmacies administered or 

more than 262 million doses of vaccine, and pharmacists and pharmacy technicians will continue to 
play an essential role in the ongoing administration of booster vaccines and supporting future 

infectious disease outbreaks.  

Early in the pandemic, the issuance of a partial waiver of NAC 639.250 allowed pharmacies to employ 

additional pharmaceutical technicians and pharmaceutical technicians-in-training to support the 
increased workload experienced during the pandemic. Over the last few years, the ratio waiver allowed 
pharmacies and pharmacists the ability to utilize dedicated support personnel to assist with additional 

COVID-related activities such as testing and vaccinating. The ratio waiver expired in July 2022, revealing 
that pharmacists faced an increased workload and limited capacity to offer services. 
 

Further, the workload of pharmacies is anticipated to increase as the federal government recently 
announced the purchase of 171 million combined doses of Pfizer and Moderna's bivalent COVID-19 

booster vaccine, expected to be available in the coming weeks. We, alongside other retailers, anticipate 
an above-average peak season for both the flu vaccines and COVID-19 bivalent vaccines, underscoring 
the need for additional capacity to support these efforts to build immunity. 



 

 

 
The expanded ratio period proved to be successful and safe in Nevada, and we hope the Board will find 

that the proposed changes makes sense to support pharmacists, pharmacy technicians, and patients in 
Nevada. We request that the Board consider emergency rulemaking to address the supervision 

allowances for pharmacists during the waiver and allow pharmacists to supervise up to a total of 6 
pharmaceutical technicians or 4 pharmaceutical technicians and 2 pharmaceutical technicians training at 
one time in any pharmacy setting. 

 
We appreciate the Board's time and consideration to empower pharmacies to continue to meet the 
healthcare needs of the community during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond.  

If you have any questions, please reach out to me at 208-513-3470 or Rob.Geddes@Albertsons.com.  

Sincerely, 

 

Rob Geddes, PharmD 

Director, Pharmacy Legislative and Regulatory Affairs 
 

mailto:Rob.Geddes@Albertsons.com


 
 

Existing regulations provide that the Board will not issue a license to conduct business as a 
medical products provider or medical products wholesaler to a practicing health professional. 
Section 5 of this regulation limits the applicability of this provision to health professionals who 
are licensed, certified, or registered in this State, thereby clarifying that a health professional who 
is not licensed, certified or registered as such in this State, is eligible for licensure as a medical 
products provider or medical products wholesaler.  
 

Sec. 5.  NAC 639.6943 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

639.6943  1.  The Board will not issue a license to conduct business as a medical products provider or 

medical products wholesaler to:  

(a) A practicing health professional; or  

(b) A partnership, corporation or association in which a practicing health professional has a 

controlling interest or in which ownership of 10 percent or more of the available stock is held by one or 

more practicing health professionals.  

2.  As used in this section, “practicing health professional” means [a health professional who 

performs]:  

(a) A health professional as defined in NAC 639.6933, who is licensed, certified or registered to 

practice his or her profession in this State; and  

 (b) Performs services within the scope of his or her licensure, certification or registration in any 

capacity in a health care facility other than the facility of the medical products provider or medical products 

wholesaler. 

--2-- 
 

GENERAL COUNSEL’S PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO LCB DRAFT OF PROPOSED REGULATION NO. R085-22 




